# **ORIGINAL**

#### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

FILED

SID J. WHITE

MAY 8 1997

TOMMIE V. JOHNSON,	)	CLERK, SUBSEME SOURT
Petitioner,	)	Chief Deputy Clerk
VS.	)	Case No. 90,494
vo.	)	DCA Case No. 96-0469
STATE OF FLORIDA,	)	
Respondent.	)	

#### PETITIONER'S BRIEF ON DISCRETIONARY JURISDICTION

RICHARD L. JORANDBY

Public Defender

Fifteenth Judicial Circuit of Florida

SUSAN D. CLINE

Assistant Public Defender
Florida Bar No. 377856
Attorney for Tommie V. Johnson
Criminal Justice Building
42 1 3rd **Street/6th** Floor
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401
(407) 355-7600

## **

#### **PRELIMINARY STATEMENT**

Petitioner was the Defendant in the Criminal Division of the Circuit Court of the Nineteenth Judicial Circuit, in and for Martin County, Florida, and the Appellant in the Fourth District Court of Appeal. Respondent was the Prosecution and the Appellee below.

In the brief, the parties will be referred to as they appear before this Honorable Court.

The following symbols will be used:

R = Record on Appeal Documents

T = Record on Appeal Transcripts

A = Petitioner's Appendix.

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Petitioner, Tommie V. Johnson, was charged by Information filed in the Nineteenth Judicial Circuit with Count I, trafficking in cocaine in an amount in excess of 28 grams; Count II, possession of cocaine with intent to sell/deliver; and Count III, driving while license suspended (R 6-7).

Petitioner proceeded to a trial by jury on November 27 and December 1, 1995. After the state rested, the trial court granted Petitioner's motion for judgment of acquittal as to Count III, driving while license suspended (T 88; R 30). The jury found Petitioner guilty as charged as to Counts I and II (R 25) and he was so adjudicated (T 146; R 32-33). At sentencing on January 11, 1996, the court sentenced Petitioner to concurrent sentences on Counts I and II of 64.37 months in prison with credit for 128 days time served (T 146-148; R 34-37).

Petitioner timely appealed (R 43). Petitioner's convictions and sentences were affirmed by the Fourth District Court of Appeal on February 19, 1997 (A 1-2). *Johnson v. State*, Case No. 96-0469 (Fla. 4th DCA Feb. 19, 1997), rehearing denied, April 2, 1997. The district court rejected Petitioner's double jeopardy challenge to his convictions for trafficking in cocaine in excess of 28 grams and possession of cocaine with intent to sell/deliver the same quantity of cocaine, citing to *Gibbs v. State*, 676 So. 2d 1001 (Fla. 4th DCA), review granted, No. 88,409 (Fla. Nov. 4, 1996).

On March 6, 1997, Petitioner timely requested rehearing **and/or** certification of conflict and/or certification of a question of great public importance. The district court denied rehearing on April 2, 1997 (A 3).

Petitioner timely filed his Notice to Invoke Discretionary Jurisdiction on May 2, 1997.

This brief on jurisdiction follows.

#### **SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT**

Petitioner respectfully submits that this Honorable Court has discretionary jurisdiction to review the instant cause on two separate grounds.

First, the Fourth District Court of Appeal affirmed Petitioner's convictions and sentences on the authority of a case pending before this *Court, Gibbs* v. *State*, 676 So. 2d 1001 (Fla. 4th DCA), *review granted, No.* 88,409 (Fla. Nov. 4, 1996). Hence, discretionary jurisdiction is provided pursuant to *Jollie v. State*, 405 So. 2d 4 18 (Fla. 198 1). Second, the fourth district's decision is in express and direct conflict with *Ricks v. State*, 687 So. 2d 13 13 (Fla. 1st DCA 1997).

#### ARGUMENT

THE DECISION OF THE FOURTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL IN *JOHNSON V.* STATE CITES TO A DECISION PRESENTLY PENDING REVIEW BEFORE THIS HONORABLE COURT AND DIRECTLY AND EXPRESSLY CONFLICTS WITH *RICKS V. STATE*, 687 SO. 2D 1313 (FLA. 1ST DCA 1997).

Petitioner respectfully submits that this Honorable Court has discretionary jurisdiction to review the instant cause on two separate grounds.

First, in the instant decision, *Johnson v. State*, Case No. 96-0469 (Fla. 4th DCA Feb. 19, 1997), *rehearing denied*, April 2, 1997, the Fourth District Court of Appeal affirmed Petitioner's convictions and sentences on the authority of a case pending before this *Court*, *Gibbs v. State*, 676 So. 2d 1001 (Fla. 4th DCA), *review granted*, No. 88,409 (Fla. Nov. 4, 1996). In *Gibbs*, the fourth district held that there was no double jeopardy violation based on convictions for trafficking in cocaine in excess of 28 grams and simple possession of the same quantity of cocaine, but certified the following question to this Court as a question of great public importance:

May a person be separately convicted and punished for trafficking possession of cocaine and simple possession of a controlled substance for the same quantity of cocaine?

Gibbs v. State, 676 So. 2d 1006.

Gibbs is presently pending before this Court. Thus, discretionary jurisdiction is established by reference to the cited case. *Jollie v. State*, 405 So. 2d 4 18 (Fla. 198 1). In *Jollie*, this Court recognized that the "randomness of the District Court's processing" should not control

a party's right to Supreme Court review. *Jollie*, 405 So. 2d at 42 1. Hence, this Honorable Court has discretionary jurisdiction to accept review of the instant cause from the fourth district because the cited authority, *Gibbs*, is presently pending before this Court.

Second, the instant decision of the fourth district in *Johnson* v. *State* is in express and direct conflict with *Ricks* v. *State*, 687 So. 2d 13 13 (Fla. 1 st DCA 1997).

In the instant cause, the fourth district rejected Petitioner's double jeopardy challenge to his dual convictions for trafficking in cocaine in excess of 28 grams and possession of cocaine with intent to sell/deliver the same quantity of cocaine. The fourth district's holding in *Johnson* is in express and direct conflict with *Ricks v. State*. In *Ricks*, the first district held that double jeopardy principles prohibit multiple convictions and sentences for possession of more than 20 grams of cannabis and possession of cannabis with intent to sell, relying on *Blockburger v. United States*, 284 U.S. 299, 76 L. Ed. 306, 52 S. Ct. 180 (1932), and *C.M. v. State*, 672 So. 2d 632 (Fla. 1st DCA 1996). Although the offenses are not identical only because they involve different controlled substances, the nature of the offenses are the same.

Thus, Petitioner submits that the instant decision of the Fourth District Court of Appeal is in express and direct conflict with *Ricks* v. *State*. Accordingly, this Court has discretionary jurisdiction pursuant to Article V, Section 3(b)(3) of the *Florida Constitution*.

As this issue has a continuing statewide significance, this issue is appropriate to be resolved by this Honorable Court. Thus, on the basis of either or both of the grounds cited by Petitioner, this Honorable Court has discretionaryjurisdictionover the instant cause. Therefore,

this Court should exercise its discretionary review jurisdiction and resolve this *frequently* recurring issue.

#### **CONCLUSION**

Whereas, Petitioner prays this Honorable Court will exercise its discretion to review the decision of the fourth district court.