# ORIGINAL FILED

SID J. WHITE

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

MAY 20 1997

TOMMIE V. JOHNSON,

Petitioner,

٧.

Case No. 90,494

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

ON DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL, FOURTH DISTRICT AND THE NINETEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR MARTIN COUNTY, FLORIDA

#### RESPONDENT'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

Robert A. Butterworth Attorney General

Belle B. Turner Assistant Attorney General FL Bar # 397024 444 Seabreeze Blvd. 5th Floor Daytona Beach, FL 32118 (904) 238-4990

Counsel for Respondent

#

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS
SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT
ARGUMENT
<u> </u>
THERE IS NO EXPRESS OR DIRECT CONFLICT BETWEEN THE DECISION IN THIS CASE AND ANY OTHER DECISION SUCH THAT THIS
COURT SHOULD EXERCISE JURISDICTION
CONCLUSION
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Respondent generally agrees with the Petitioner's version of the case and facts with the following additional finding from the decision entered below in this case:

"Defendant concedes that affirmance on this point is required based on Gibbs v State, 676 So. 2d 1001 (Fla. 4th DCA), review Mranted, . 88,409 (Fla. Nov. 4, 1996)....This case is a stronger case than Gibbs for rejecting a double jeopardy challenge because the second offense here is not simple possession as in Gibbs but possession with intent to sell/deliver. There are several ways to analyze the differences between these crimes.... Johnson v. State, 689 So. 2d 3.124, 1125 (Fla. 4th DCA 1997). (See also, Appendix)

# SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The decision in this case does not expressly or directly conflict with any other decision and so this Court should not exercise jurisdiction in this case.

#### POINT ONE

THERE IS NO EXPRESS OR DIRECT CONFLICT BETWEEN THE DECISION IN THIS CASE AND ANY OTHER DECISION SUCH THAT THIS COURT SHOULD EXERCISE JURISDICTION

Under Article V, Section 3(b) (3) of the Florida Constitution, and Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv), this Court may review any decision of a district court of appeal that expressly and directly conflicts with a decision of district court or of the Supreme Court on the same question of law. In Reaves v. State, 485 So. 2d 829 (Fla. 1986), this Court held that the only facts relevant to the decision to accept or reject petitions for review are those facts contained within the four corners of the majority decision; neither the dissenting opinion nor the record may be used to establish jurisdiction. jurisdiction depends upon whether the conflict between decisions is express and direct and not whether the conflict is inherent or implied. <u>Lept Of HRS v. Nat'l Adoption Counseling Service</u>, 498 So. 2d 888 (Fla. 1986). The district courts are ordinarily the court of final appellate jurisdiction, and this Court's review on the basis of conflict of decisions is limited.

Viewed in this light, there is no basis to exercise

jurisdiction in this case. Petitioner requests this Court to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction on two bases: that by citing to Gibbs v. State, supra, currently pending before this Court, the decision below is subject to review pursuant to Jollie v. State, 405 So. 2d 418 (Fla. 1981), and second, that the decision below conflicts with Ricks v. State, 686 So. 2d 798 (Fla. 1st DCA 1997). 1

Although it is true that of this writing, **Gibbs** a in s pending before this Court, Respondent predicts that by the time these words are read, the decision will have issued. Regardless, the <u>Gibbs</u> decision was not cited as controlling the result in this case. 'This case is a stronger case than <u>Gibbs</u> for rejecting a double jeopardy challenge because the second offense here is not simple possession as in <u>Gibbs</u> but possession with intent to sell/deliver. There are several ways to analyze the differences between these crimes." <u>Johnson v. State</u>, 689 So. 2d 1124, 1125 (Fla. 4th DCA 1997). The decision then explained the differences between these two offenses, amply demonstrating that they were different for double jeopardy purposes. Therefore, despite the

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>An apparently incorrect citation for the <u>Ricks</u> decision was included in Petitioner's brief; based on the context of the argument, Respondent has concluded that this is the correct citation for the decision relied upon by Petitioner.

fact that <u>Gibbs</u> is pending, since it was not cited as controlling the result in this <u>case</u>, this Court need not exercise jurisdiction in this case pursuant to <u>Jollie</u>, <u>supra</u>. Whatever the outcome of the <u>Gibbs</u> case, this decision would be distinguishable given the different crimes involved. Trafficking in a controlled substance and possession with the intent to sell or deliver the controlled substance are substantially different offenses from two possession offenses. The fact that <u>Gibbs</u> is distinguishable demonstrates that this Court need not exercise jurisdiction on the ground that <u>Gibbs</u> is pending.

Nor does this case conflict with Ricks v. State, supra.

Ricks, like Gibbs, involved dual convictions for two possessory offenses: "simple" possession of marijuana and possession with the intent to sell/deliver the same marijuana. These two decisions may conflict with each other, but they do not conflict with this case.

This Court should decline to accept jurisdiction in this case.

#### CONCLUSION

Based upon the foregoing argument and authority, the State respectfully requests this Honorable Court to decline to accept jurisdiction in this case.